
 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

July 22, 2015 
3:00 P.M.  

1055 Ventura Avenue 
Oak View, CA 93022 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 

 
5. Consent Agenda 
 
 a. Minutes of June 24, 2015 Meeting. 
  
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
6. Bills 
 
7. Review of the staff report on the Pump Plant Noise Remediation. 
 
8. Resolution fixing a tax rate for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 and authorizing the 
 President of the Board to execute a certificate requesting the Ventura 
 County Board of Supervisors to levy such a tax. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
 1 



9. Recommend approval of a purchase order in the amount of $5,000.00 to 
Incode for modification for additional consumption history to be provided 
for customer access on the internet. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Motion approving recommendation 
 
10. Recommend approval of a payment to CalPERS in the amount of 

$161,892.00 for unfunded Accrued Liability per GASB 68. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
11. Recommend approval of a purchase order in the amount of $6,375.00 for 

the purchase of five jet toilets. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
12. Resolution adopting the conservation surcharge. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
13. Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
 

a. Recommend approval of a Waiver of Conflict of Interest for 
Representation related to the GSA Formation. 

 
Recommended Action: Motion approving recommendation 

 
b. Discussion on Groundwater Sustainability Agency formation progress. 

  
14. Discussion regarding scheduling a date for a Board Workshop on the Rate 

Study. 
 
15. Information Items: 
 

a. Finance Committee Minutes. 
b. Water Consumption Report. 
c. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
d. Investment Report. 

 
16. Closed Session 
 

a. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Existing Litigation (Subdivision (a) of 
Section 54956.9, Government Code).  Name of Case:  Golden State 
Water Company v. Casitas Municipal Water District.  Case Number: 
56-2013-00433986-CU-WM-VTA. 
 

b. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (Subdivision (a) of 
Section 54956.9, Government Code). Name of Case: Santa Barbara 
Channelkeeper v. State Water Resources Control Board, et al. Case 

 2 



Number: CPF-14-513875.  Cross Complaint filed by City of San 
Buenaventura v. Casitas Municipal Water District, et al. 

 
c. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Anticipated Litigation  

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 
54956.9, Government Code. (number of potential cases: one)  
 

d. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Govt. Code Sec. 54957) 
Title: General Manager 

 
17. Discussion and possible recommendation for approval of modification to 

the General Manager’s compensation. 
 

18. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting, 
please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  113.  (Govt. Code 
Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 

 3 



Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 

June 24, 2015 
 

A meeting of the Board of Directors was held June 24, 2015 at the District office 
in Oak View, California. The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. Directors 
Bergen, Kaiser, Baggerly, Word and Hicks were present.  Also present were 
Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and 
Attorney, John Mathews.  There were three staff members and four members of 
the public in attendance.  President Bergen led the group in the flag salute. 

 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

Jim Finch spoke to the board regarding allocations and that he thinks he 
can do it with 2.25 acre feet but when he spoke to a neighbor, the neighbor 
asked for three acre feet.  Mr. Finch encouraged the board to look at the 
allocations geographically.  He does not want to be a 2.25 acre feet with a 
neighbor at three and then he gets cut further.  He added that he thinks the 
farmers are more than willing to work with you. Mr. Wickstrum explained that we 
have had people come in stating they need three acre feet when their neighbor is 
using 1.35 and added that we do have the ability to look at it geographically.  
 
2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum informed the board that the Upper Ojai 3M job is complete 
and online. He then mentioned that we are watching SB88, a new legislation that 
looks onerous in that the State Board is in charge of enforcing consolidation of 
water agencies.  There is state funding to do the consolidation and there is a 
process by which there is communication between stakeholders and the 
consolidating agency and the state to coordinate how this is done. Mr. Wickstrum 
added that Carol Belser met with the State on the quagga grant and it sounds 
like we should have a letter authorizing the grant at the end of the week.  Ron 
Merckling is meeting with DWR group to discuss the grant application filed for 
aeration system and the reporting requirements on that grant.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Hicks commented on the request for water usage of the board 
members and he thought that the report that was provided was a good tool for 
customers to know their own water use and suggested sending a report to every 
customer.  Ms. Collin explained that the information is available for every 
customer on their account via our web.  Mr. Wickstrum added we have talked 
about putting three years of usage on the bills.  
  

Director Baggerly mentioned that the current water service agreement with 
the city allows them to rent water from the district.  Since 2005, about 8,000 acre 
feet has been exported from the district.  If we added that water back in the lake 
we would be above 50% and be in a different position.  While the district has 
been working to change that agreement, to no avail, we have not had any luck 
and water is still going out of the district. 
 1 



4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 

Director Hicks mentioned the water issues meeting he attended and felt it 
was the best meeting he has attended.   
 

Director Word mentioned some interesting concepts that were discussed 
at the AWA meeting.  The speaker thought we should use water as a commodity 
and water should be traded like anything else.  Director Baggerly mentioned he 
was surprised to see pixie packages for sale at Vons. 

  
Director Kaiser reported the attendance of himself, Mary and Steve at the 

Ventura River GSA meeting yesterday.  A lot of time was spent on various types 
of lawsuits and waiver of conflicts of interest.  We talked about future 
membership on that agency and it was interesting when Shauna Epstein 
suggested opening it up to certain people or to open the entire river to the GSA 
process.  President Bergen added that the obvious interaction of the GSA 
process along with the lawsuit and cross complaint complicates things.  Russ 
McGlothlin was there and extremely helpful, treading a careful line but provided 
some good insights on the difference in adjudication and GSA and newer 
legislation for streamlining adjudication and the process for the court to stay 
action on the lawsuit while the GSA is organized.  Director Baggerly asked if the 
waiver was signed.  President Bergen replied that the City of Ventura and 
Casitas have not signed the waiver. We need to discuss that further.   
 
5. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 
 a. Minutes of June 10, 2015 Meeting. 
  

Director Word suggested clarification to item 9 where it was discussing the 
usage of 80% of 89 numbers, not to exceed three acre feet per acre.  Mr. 
Wickstrum explained that this is the correct language and that we are not able to 
provide three acre feet per acre to all Ag or we would exceed our safe yield.  
Some of our Ag customers use less than two acre feet per acre on a regular 
basis. 
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Baggerly, the 
Consent Agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
6. Bills         APPROVED 
 

Director Word questioned #21007 for excess charges for armored service. 
Denise Collin explained that in our contract there is a limitation on the amount 
they can carry between cash and checks and if it goes over that limit there is an 
additional fee.  We are going to be reimbursed from Rabobank for those fees as 
we are still transitioning to the remit plus process.   
 

 2 



On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks, the bills 
were approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
7. Resolution of appreciation to Caron Smith for ten years of service to 

Casitas.        ADOPTED 
 
 President Bergen read the resolution of appreciation and thanked Ms. 
Smith for her ten years of service to the District. 
 
 The resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Kaiser and passed by the following roll call vote: 
   

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 15-24 
 
8. Public Hearing for the adoption of the 2015-2016 Budget. 
 

a. Public Hearing  
 

President Bergen stated this is the time and place for a public hearing to 
consider input regarding the proposed Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget.  She 
asked the Clerk of the Board to provide the names of the public who called or 
submitted communications regarding the proposed budget.  Ms. Vieira stated 
there were none. President Bergen then asked for the General Manager’s report.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum provided his report and added that staff had spent six 
months putting the budget together, it had been reviewed by the Finance 
Committee and the board of directors and he was proud to offer this final budget. 
President Bergen opened the public hearing at 3:24 p.m.  Mr. Finch asked why 
the Administration numbers went up.  Ms. Collin explained that is a result of the 
overhead charges at the Recreation area going down. Director Word stated he is 
impressed with how much detail goes into the budget and staff did an 
outstanding job putting it together.  Director Kaiser echoed those sentiments.  Mr. 
Wickstrum added that staff is appreciate of the board’s support and there is a lot 
of work at hand to keep the system alive as we are past the 50 year mark on a lot 
of our infrastructure.  President Bergen then closed the public hearing at 3:28 
p.m. 
 

b. Resolution adopting the general fund budget, debt service fund and 
Mira Monte water assessment district fund budgets for the Fiscal 
Year ending June 30, 2016.    ADOPTED 

  

 3 



The resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Kaiser and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 15-25 
 
9. Resolution fixing a tax rate for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 and authorizing the 
 President of the Board to execute a certificate requesting the Ventura 
 County Board of Supervisors to levy such a tax.  ADOPTED 
 

  The resolution was offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by Director 
Baggerly and adopted by the following roll call vote:   
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 15-26 
 
10. Resolution to adopt, under Proposition 4, the 2015/2016 Establishment of 

Appropriations Limit of $11,916,598.    ADOPTED 
 
 The resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Word and adopted by the following roll call vote:   
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 15-27 
 
11. Resolution authorizing the levy of a special tax for fiscal year 2015-2016 

for Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai).  ADOPTED 
   
 The resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Kaiser and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 15-28 
 
12. Discussion on drought response and requirements of the State Water 

Resources Control Board. 
 

 4 



 Mr. Wickstrum commented that it appears that the State Water Resources 
Control Board was looking for ways to eliminate us as one of their reasons was 
for a water well even though we stated it is in a mothball condition and is not part 
of our four years of water supply.  It appears that they wanted to help out a 
certain pocket of the state and did not think there were any entities in Southern 
California that could qualify for the 4%. We would like to send another letter to 
the state asking that we be allowed to work under or Urban Water Management 
Plan and not require the 32% reduction.  Last month we achieved a 23% 
reduction.  Ron Merckling added that part of the discussions have been the 
request to subtract Ag from the urban water use calculation but they are asking 
us to have a signed letter agreement and to prepare an Ag Water Management 
Plan by February 2016.  If you serve less than 25,000 acres of Ag land there is 
no need for an Ag Management Plan.  There are inconsistencies and this will be 
raised in our letter.  If we don’t sign the letter we have to include Ag in the 32% 
reduction and that impacts Ag and does not make sense.  If we add the Ag 
numbers we have achieved an 11% reduction.  Director Word added this defeats 
the purpose of what we were designed to do.  President Bergen added it does 
not make sense.  We will conserve every bit we can and we have a good plan 
and are implementing it. 
 

Director Baggerly added people are worried that when they hear the 32% 
reduction that each individual has to reduce their usage by 32% but that amount 
is on water production.  Those that are using way too much water need to reduce 
 

Mr. Wickstrum added that with our direct urban use now at a 23% 
reduction he expects the allocation program to assist in achieving that additional 
9%.  He added that he will be sending a letter to the State Water Resources 
Control Board.  
 
13. Discussion and approval of Workers’ Compensation Insurance Coverage 

for fiscal year 2015/2016.       APPROVED 
 
 The board reviewed options to continue with the CSAC Excess Workers’ 
Compensation Program at a price of $118,124 and a quote provided by SDRMA 
for primary coverage at a cost of $169,717.85.     
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Kaiser, the board 
moved to continue with the CSAC Excess Workers’ Compensation Program.  
This was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
14. Discussion regarding the possibility of cancelling the July 8th Board 

meeting and rescheduling some of the Committee meetings in July. 
 

  On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks the July 8th 
board meeting is cancelled, Recreation Committee is tentatively rescheduled to 

 5 



July 20th, and Personnel and Executive will be rescheduled if necessary.  This 
was approved by the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 

  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
15. Information Items: 
 

a. Finance Committee Minutes. 
b. Investment Report. 

 
On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Direction Baggerly, the 

information items were approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 

President Bergen moved the meeting to closed session at 4:02 p.m. 
 
16. Closed Session 
 

a. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Existing Litigation (Subdivision (a) of 
Section 54956.9, Government Code).  Name of Case:  Golden State 
Water Company v. Casitas Municipal Water District.  Case Number: 
56-2013-00433986-CU-WM-VTA. 
 

b. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Existing Litigation (Subdivision (a) of 
Section 54956.9, Government Code).  Name of Case:  Native 
Electrical Construction, Inc. v. Casitas Municipal Water District.  Case 
Number: 56-2014-00457255-CU-BC-VTA. 
 

c. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (Subdivision (a) of 
Section 54956.9, Government Code). Name of Case: Santa Barbara 
Channelkeeper v. State Water Resources Control Board, et al. Case 
Number: CPF-14-513875.  Cross Complaint filed by City of San 
Buenaventura v. Casitas Municipal Water District, et al. 

 
d. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Anticipated Litigation  

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 
54956.9, Government Code. (number of potential cases: one)  
 

e. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Govt. Code Sec. 54957) 
Title: General Manager 

 
President Bergen moved the meeting back into open session at 5:48 p.m. 

with Mr. Mathews stating there were no reportable actions on any of the closed 
session items. 
 
 6 



17. Discussion and possible recommendation for approval of modification to 
the General Manager’s compensation.    Tabled 

 
18. Adjournment  
 
 President Bergen adjourned the meeting at 5:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       Russ Baggerly, Secretary 

 7 































































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVEN E. WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM: NEIL COLE, PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: 4M & UPPER OJAI PUMP PLANTS SOUND ABATEMENT  

DATE: JULY 16, 2015 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors find that the sound reducing equipment installed at 
the 4M & Upper Ojai Pump Plants has met the goal of reducing the sound level at the nearest 
residence to below the Ventura County sound guidelines and no further work is required. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
In June 2013, Casitas Board directed staff to reduce the sound generated by the 4M & Upper Ojai 
Pump Plants to below Ventura County guidelines for new noise producing project.  Utilities are 
exempted from the County guidelines.  Casitas staff has installed motor mute-girdles on the three 
4m Pump Plant motors, a motor mute-girdle on the vertical Upper Ojai Pump Plant motor and a 
sound panel enclosure on the Upper Ojai Pump Plant horizontal motor.  Pictures are attached. 
 
After installation of the noise reducing equipment, a twenty four hour sound study was conducted 
by Advanced Engineering Acoustics (AEA).  During the test, all motors were operated at various 
times and two 4M Pump Plant motors were operated for a period during the late night hours.  
Nine sound measurement devices were used during the test spread out at various locations to 
identify the ambient and pump noise levels.  The test results showed that the sound levels had 
been reduced to below the County standards.  The study report is attached. 
 
The neighbors subsequently hired Meridian Consultants to conduct a separate sound test for the 
4M Pump Plant only.  Meridian Consultants used one sound meter and measured the sound 
levels with each pump operating for approximately 15 minutes and then moved the meter to the 
closest residence for a 24 hour period.  Meridian Consultant’s report is attached. 
 
Casitas requested AEA to review the Meridian Consultant’s report and the comment made by 
one of the neighbors (attached) in an email based on the Meridian Consultants report.  The 
conclusion of the review was that the 4M Pump Plant sound level was below the levels 
established by the Ventura County guidelines.  Therefore the goal established by the Board has 
been met.  



 
FUNDING: 
 
The following has been expended on the sound reduction project to date: 
 
Sound Tests & Review                            $11,985.00 
Casitas’ Labor         $  9,902.15 
Motor girdles, sound panels                    $47,420.38 
                         Total        $69,307.53 
 
 
 







Advanced Engineering Acoustics 
663 Bristol Avenue 

Simi Valley, California 93065-5402 
(805) 583-8207 - Voice     (805) 231-1242 - Cell     (805) 522-6636 - Fax 

 
 

December 13, 2014 
 
Mr. Neil Cole  
Casitas Municipal Water District  
1055 N. Ventura Avenue 
Oak View , CA 93022 
 
SUBJECT: Ambient and Operations Noise Measurements (Mitigated and Combined) 
 Casitas Municipal Water District (CMWD) - 4m and Upper Pumping Plants 
 Mitigated Noise Monitoring Report 
 
REFERENCE:  AEA Letter Report, Ambient and Operations Noise Measurements, March 22, 2013 
 
Dear Mr. Cole: 
 
At your request, Advanced Engineering Acoustics (AEA) has conducted ambient and mitigated 
pump operation noise measurements at both the 4m and Upper Ojai Pumping Plants.  Both suction 
and girdle motor mutes have been installed on the pump motors at both plants.  Prior to the 
introduction of noise control measures, the existing pumping plant had been receiving noise 
complaints from a resident in the vicinity.  Figure 1 is a vicinity map with the project site.  This 
letter report summarizes the results of our plant noise monitoring of the mitigated pumps in the 4m 
and Upper Ojai Plants. 
 

 
Figure 1.  Project Vicinity Map 



Casitas Municipal Water District 
Ambient and Mitigated Pumping Plants Operation Noise 
Page 2 

 
 

 
Fundamentals of Sound  -  Physically, sound pressure magnitude is measured and quantified in terms 
of the decibel (dB), which is associated with a logarithmic scale based on the ratio of a measured 
sound pressure to the reference sound pressure of 20 micropascal (20 Pa = 20 x 10-6 N/m2).  
However, the decibel system can be very confusing.  For example, doubling or halving the number 
of sources of equal noise (a 2-fold change in acoustic energy) changes the receptor noise by only 3 
dB, which is a barely perceptible sound change for humans.  While doubling or halving the sound 
loudness at the receiver results from a 10 dB change and also represents a 10-fold change in the 
acoustic energy. 
 
In addition, the human hearing system is not equally sensitive to sound at all frequencies.  Because 
of this variability, a frequency-dependent adjustment called “A-weighting” has been devised so that 
sound may be measured in a manner similar to the way the human hearing system responds.  The A-
weighted sound level is abbreviated "dBA". 
 
County Noise Standards  -  The noise standards for the County of Ventura are outlined in Sec. 2.16 
Noise et. al,. of the Ventura County General Plan Policies (see this information online at 
www.ventura.org/planning ).  Table 1 shows the county noise standards for noise-generating 
sources.   

 
Table 1.  Ventura County General Plan Noise Source Limits 

(4)  Noise generators, proposed to be located near any noise sensitive use, shall incorporate noise 
control measures so that ongoing outdoor noise levels received by the noise sensitive receptor, 
measured at the exterior wall of the building, do not exceed any of the following standards: 
 
a.  Leq(1hr) of 55 dB(A) or ambient noise level plus 3 dB(A), whichever is greater, during any hour 

from 6:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
 
b.  Leq(1hr) of 50 dB(A) or ambient noise level plus 3 dB(A), whichever is greater, during any hour 

from 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. 
 
c.  Leq(1hr) of 45 dB(A) or ambient noise level plus 3 dB(A), whichever is greater, during any hour 

from 10:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. 
 
Plant Noise Monitoring  -  CMWD mitigated pumping plants operations sound sources and ambient 
noise measurements were conducted at nine monitoring locations on and near the subject property.  
The nearest residential location is just beyond the northeastern corner boundary of the plant 
property.  Other relative residences are west, north and east of the plant property.  The ambient 
(background) noise, along with the mitigated pumping plants operations noise, are reported herein.  
The noise monitoring was conducted on Tuesday and Wednesday, November 18 and 19, 2014, using 
nine Larson-Davis Model Type 1 Sound Level Meters, which were calibrated according to the 
manufacturer’s instructions prior to the 25-hour noise monitoring period.  Figure 2 shows a vicinity 
aerial view and the project site with the sound meter locations and the nearest residences to the 
sound meters.  Hourly noise data are given in Appendix A, 1-minute Leq noise plots are shown in 
Appendix B and relevant acoustic terminology is covered in Appendix C. 

http://www.ventura.org/planning


Casitas Municipal Water District 
Ambient and Mitigated Pumping Plants Operation Noise 
Page 3 

 
 

 

 
Figure 2.  View of the Unmitigated Project Site, Sound Meter Locations and Residences  

 

 
Figure 3.  View of the Mitigated Project Site, Sound Meter Locations and Residences  

 
Summary of Plant Measurements  -  Figure 4 shows the measured 1-minute Leq noise levels 
throughout the Upper Ojai Plant pumping operation periods.  Figure 5 shows the measured 1-minute 
Leq noise levels throughout the 4m Plant pumping operation periods.  Table 2 shows the measured 
daytime ambient noise at the mitigated pump for no plant operations (an air conditioner was running 
at the utility enclosure just south of the 4m Plant pumps).  Table 3 shows the measured daytime 



Casitas Municipal Water District 
Ambient and Mitigated Pumping Plants Operation Noise 
Page 4 

 
 

ambient noise at the west fence and north berm.  Table 4 shows the distances between the pumping 
plants and the nearest residences, with the noise reductions due to the source/receiver distance and 
any earthen berm.   Appendix A gives the hourly Leq and 24-hour CNEL at the nine sound meter 
locations.  Appendix B shows the 1-minute Leq noise levels at all nine sound meter locations. 
  

Mitigated Upper Ojai Pumping Plant Noise

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

0
:0

0

1
:0

0

2
:0

0

3
:0

0

4
:0

0

5
:0

0

6
:0

0

7
:0

0

8
:0

0

9
:0

0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

Time, hh:mm

A
-W

e
ig

h
te

d
 S

o
u

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l,
 d

B
A

SLM 2

SLM 1

SLM 8

 
Figure 4.  Ambient and Mitigated Upper Ojai Pumping Operations Noise 

 
 

Mitigated 4m Pumpimg Plant Noise

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

0
:0

0

1
:0

0

2
:0

0

3
:0

0

4
:0

0

5
:0

0

6
:0

0

7
:0

0

8
:0

0

9
:0

0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

Time, hh:mm

A
-W

e
ig

h
te

d
 S

o
u

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l,
 d

B
A

SLM 7

SLM 5

SLM 6

 
Figure 5.  Ambient and Mitigated 4m Plant Pumping Operations Noise 

 



Casitas Municipal Water District 
Ambient and Mitigated Pumping Plants Operation Noise 
Page 5 

 
 

Table 2.  Measured 5-foot Unmitigated and Mitigated Upper Ojai Pump Noise 
(See Figures 2 and 3 for Meter Locations) 

Unmitigated 
Pump Noise 
Measuremen
t Day Period 

(2/7/13) 

 
SLM 2

Leq(hr), 
dBA 

Mitigated 
Pump Noise 

Measurement 
Evening-Night 
(11/18-19/14) 

 
SLM 2 

Leq(hr),  
dBA 

13:00 84.7 19:00 77.0 
14:00 85.9 20:00 77.2 
15:00 86.5 21:00 77.2 
16:00 86.5 22:00 77.0 
17:00 86.6 23:00 77.3 

- - 0:00 77.3 
- - 1:00 77.0 
- - 2:00 76.2 

 
Table 3.  Measured 5-foot Unmitigated and Mitigated 4m Pump Noise 

(See Figures 2 and 3 for Meter Locations) 
Pump Noise 

Measurement 
Evening Period 

(2/6/13) 

 
SLM 6

Leq(hr), 
dBA 

Pump Noise 
Measurement 
Night Period 

(11/19/14) 

 
SLM 7 

Leq(hr),  
dBA 

20:00 80.4 1:00 70.2 
21:00 79.6 2:00 70.3 
22:00 77.0 3:00 70.1 

- - 4:00 70.1 
- - 5:00 70.2 
- - 6:00 70.2 

 
Table 4.  Distances and Noise Reduction (NR) from Pumps to Nearest Residences 

Plant Noise 
Sources and Noise 

Reductions 

SLM 2 to R1 
Residence 

Distance, feet 

SLM 7 to R2 
Residence 

Distance, feet 

SLM 7 to R3 
Residence 

Distance, feet 
Upper Ojai Plant 220 n/a n/a 
4m Pumping Plant n/a 140 170 
NR for Distance Loss 33 29 30 
Sound Level 44 41 44 
Min. NR with Earth Berm n/a 5 5 
Sound Level 44 36 39 

   n/a = not applicable 
 

Findings and Conclusions  -  Project site mitigated noise monitoring was conducted on Tuesday and 
Wednesday, November 18 and 19, 2014.  The spikes in ambient noise and test measurements were caused 
by local roadway traffic and off-site maintenance activities.  The best indication of the noise mitigating 
performance of the motor mutes is seen in Figures 4 and 5 and Tables 2 and 3 for the Upper Ojai and 4m 
plant cases, respectively.  Comparing the mitigated pump noise with the unmitigated pump noise reported 



Casitas Municipal Water District 
Ambient and Mitigated Pumping Plants Operation Noise 
Page 6 

 
 

previously shows a 5-foot pump noise reduction of approximately 10 dBA due to the motor mutes, which 
results in mitigated pump noise being reduced to one half the loudness as the unmitigated pump noise.   

It was previously determined (see referenced AEA report) that the plant pump noise did not exceed 
the County daytime and evening fixed noise limits.  During the latest pump noise testing pump 
operations did occur during the day, evening and nighttime hours.  These noise measurements and 
residence distance noise loss projections show that the county General Plan daytime, evening and 
nighttime fixed noise limits of 55 dBA Leq(1 hr), 50 dBA Leq(1 hr) and 45 dBA Leq(1 hr) were not 
exceeded at the nearest residences due to pumping plant operations.  This concludes my report on 
the noise measurements of the Casitas Municipal Water District Upper Ojai and 4m Plant mitigated 
pump noise.  If you have any questions regarding this report, please contact me by phone or email. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Marlund E. Hale, Ph.D., INCE (full member) 
noisedoc@aol.com  

mailto:noisedoc@aol.com


Casitas Municipal Water District 
Ambient and Mitigated Pumping Plants Operation Noise 
Page 7 

 
 

A P P E N D I X   A 
Unmitigated Monitoring Location Hourly Leq, dBA 

(Wednesday and Thursday, Feb. 6 & 7, 2013) 
(See Figure 2 for Sound Meter Locations) 

Hour SLM 1 SLM 2 * SLM 3 SLM 4 SLM 5 SLM 6 * 
19:00 46.0 53.5 54.9 33.9 32.1 35.1 
20:00 46.1 54.2 55.6 62.8 65.8 80.4 
21:00 44.3 51.9 53.8 56.2 62.4 79.6 
22:00 55.2 75.7 56.7 58.7 69.3 77.0 
23:00 38.8 46.4 47.8 33.7 31.3 36.6 

0:00 36.1 41.8 43.5 33.4 31.0 36.7 
1:00 35.7 41.3 42.4 33.2 30.6 36.4 
2:00 36.4 42.8 44.1 32.9 30.2 36.4 
3:00 32.6 31.7 27.9 32.6 30.1 36.4 
4:00 32.9 32.3 28.2 32.6 30.0 36.1 
5:00 36.5 43.2 44.8 33.0 30.2 36.4 
6:00 42.6 50.7 52.5 34.8 32.5 37.2 
7:00 47.2 55.7 57.4 37.0 34.6 38.3 
8:00 50.7 57.9 59.5 41.2 39.2 41.6 
9:00 51.4 58.1 59.9 40.6 38.9 43.3 

10:00 52.4 57.2 59.8 62.7 65.8 69.8 
11:00 52.0 57.2 59.9 64.9 68.2 72.5 
12:00 53.2 69.3 58.7 60.3 60.0 59.1 
13:00 63.4 84.7 62.0 50.5 50.7 51.2 
14:00 63.4 85.9 61.7 43.3 43.6 47.8 
15:00 62.9 86.5 61.5 39.8 38.3 40.0 
16:00 62.7 86.5 61.2 37.6 36.0 38.1 
17:00 62.5 86.6 61.6 38.2 36.5 38.5 
18:00 53.8 76.4 57.4 37.1 35.6 38.0 

CNEL 57.4 79.7 60.1 58.3 63.7 75.4 

  * Meter 5 feet from unmitigated pump.  Red font indicates operational. 

 



Casitas Municipal Water District 
Ambient and Mitigated Pumping Plants Operation Noise 
Page 8 

 
 

Mitigated Monitoring Location Hourly Leq, dBA 
(Tuesday and Wednesday, Nov. 18 & 19, 2014) 

(See Figure 3 for Sound Meter Locations) 
Hour SLM 1 SLM 2 * SLM 3 SLM 4 SLM 5 SLM 6 SLM 7 * SLM 8 SLM 9
14:00 59.8 74.5 59.1 38.8 36.5 49.5 38.6 58.2 59.9
15:00 59.6 76.0 58.3 45.1 53.1 50.5 66.8 58.1 59.5
16:00 48.8 58.1 58.4 44.5 49.9 50.7 63.0 57.3 60.1
17:00 49.2 58.4 58.8 42.9 42.2 50.9 42.5 56.7 60.2
18:00 51.3 70.3 56.4 42.0 40.1 50.6 43.3 54.0 58.1
19:00 55.5 77.0 55.6 39.8 37.9 49.9 38.8 52.9 55.1
20:00 56.1 77.2 55.1 38.2 36.3 49.6 37.4 51.8 54.6
21:00 56.1 77.2 55.3 40.0 38.1 49.9 39.6 51.5 54.7
22:00 56.2 77.0 52.3 37.0 36.6 49.4 36.3 49.6 49.0
23:00 55.8 77.3 52.9 37.3 36.0 49.5 35.5 49.9 49.7
0:00 55.7 77.3 51.7 47.0 53.9 50.0 68.7 48.9 43.1
1:00 55.9 77.0 50.9 47.4 55.3 50.2 70.2 49.1 38.3
2:00 55.9 76.2 50.6 47.1 55.1 50.2 70.3 49.2 38.0
3:00 41.0 51.2 36.8 47.3 54.7 50.3 70.1 45.9 38.5
4:00 54.4 76.5 52.0 47.0 54.7 50.3 70.1 49.6 48.3
5:00 53.1 74.7 54.3 47.1 54.9 50.5 70.2 50.5 54.0
6:00 46.5 55.8 55.4 47.3 54.7 51.1 70.2 51.7 57.3
7:00 53.0 72.7 59.3 46.2 52.1 51.6 66.6 55.2 60.0
8:00 58.1 77.1 60.6 41.1 39.0 50.8 39.7 56.4 61.6
9:00 54.8 74.9 57.8 60.3 73.7 56.3 78.3 72.2 58.0

10:00 54.4 71.9 58.9 41.4 39.7 50.8 40.8 76.5 59.7
11:00 54.6 71.1 58.6 38.4 37.0 50.0 37.2 76.9 58.5
12:00 48.2 57.3 57.7 38.0 37.0 50.3 37.5 77.3 59.2
13:00 49.2 58.4 59.1 38.4 36.6 50.5 37.4 75.9 60.3

14:00 48.8 57.9 59.1 40.8 37.2 50.6 37.9 76.2 62.1
CNEL 61.2 82.1 60.6 53.3 62.7 57.0 75.1 68.7 60.1 

* Sound meter 5 feet from mitigated pump.  Red font indicates noise from operating pump. 



Casitas Municipal Water District 
Ambient and Mitigated Pumping Plants Operation Noise 
Page 9 

 
 

A P P E N D I X   B 
 

SLM 1 - One Minute Leq

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

0
:0

0

1
:0

0

2
:0

0

3
:0

0

4
:0

0

5
:0

0

6
:0

0

7
:0

0

8
:0

0

9
:0

0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

Time, hh:mm

A
-W

e
ig

h
te

d
 S

o
u

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l,
 d

B
A

Leq(min)

 
 

SLM 2 - One Minute Leq

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

0
:0

0

1
:0

0

2
:0

0

3
:0

0

4
:0

0

5
:0

0

6
:0

0

7
:0

0

8
:0

0

9
:0

0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

Time, hh:mm

A
-W

e
ig

h
te

d
 S

o
u

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l,
 d

B
A

Leq(min)

 
 



Casitas Municipal Water District 
Ambient and Mitigated Pumping Plants Operation Noise 
Page 10 

 
 

SLM 3 - One Minute Leq

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

0
:0

0

1
:0

0

2
:0

0

3
:0

0

4
:0

0

5
:0

0

6
:0

0

7
:0

0

8
:0

0

9
:0

0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

Time, hh:mm

A
-W

e
ig

h
te

d
 S

o
u

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l,
 d

B
A

Leq(min)

 
 

SLM 4 - One Minute Leq

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

0
:0

0

1
:0

0

2
:0

0

3
:0

0

4
:0

0

5
:0

0

6
:0

0

7
:0

0

8
:0

0

9
:0

0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

Time, hh:mm

A
-W

e
ig

h
te

d
 S

o
u

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l,
 d

B
A

Leq(min)

 
 



Casitas Municipal Water District 
Ambient and Mitigated Pumping Plants Operation Noise 
Page 11 

 
 

SLM 5 - One Minute Leq

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

0
:0

0

1
:0

0

2
:0

0

3
:0

0

4
:0

0

5
:0

0

6
:0

0

7
:0

0

8
:0

0

9
:0

0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

Time, hh:mm

A
-W

e
ig

h
te

d
 S

o
u

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l,
 d

B
A

Leq(min)

 
 

SLM 6 - One Minute Leq

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

0
:0

0

1
:0

0

2
:0

0

3
:0

0

4
:0

0

5
:0

0

6
:0

0

7
:0

0

8
:0

0

9
:0

0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

Time, hh:mm

A
-W

e
ig

h
te

d
 S

o
u

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l,
 d

B
A

Leq(min)

 
 



Casitas Municipal Water District 
Ambient and Mitigated Pumping Plants Operation Noise 
Page 12 

 
 

SLM 7 - One Minute Leq

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

0
:0

0

1
:0

0

2
:0

0

3
:0

0

4
:0

0

5
:0

0

6
:0

0

7
:0

0

8
:0

0

9
:0

0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

Time, hh:mm

A
-W

e
ig

h
te

d
 S

o
u

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l,
 d

B
A

Leq(min)

 
 

SLM 8 - One Minute Leq

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

0
:0

0

1
:0

0

2
:0

0

3
:0

0

4
:0

0

5
:0

0

6
:0

0

7
:0

0

8
:0

0

9
:0

0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

Time, hh:mm

A
-W

e
ig

h
te

d
 S

o
u

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l,
 d

B
A

Leq(min)

 
 



Casitas Municipal Water District 
Ambient and Mitigated Pumping Plants Operation Noise 
Page 13 

 
 

SLM 9 - One Minute Leq

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

1
5

:0
0

1
6

:0
0

1
7

:0
0

1
8

:0
0

1
9

:0
0

2
0

:0
0

2
1

:0
0

2
2

:0
0

2
3

:0
0

0
:0

0

1
:0

0

2
:0

0

3
:0

0

4
:0

0

5
:0

0

6
:0

0

7
:0

0

8
:0

0

9
:0

0

1
0

:0
0

1
1

:0
0

1
2

:0
0

1
3

:0
0

1
4

:0
0

Time, hh:mm

A
-W

e
ig

h
te

d
 S

o
u

n
d

 L
e

v
e

l,
 d

B
A

Leq(min)

 



Casitas Municipal Water District 
Ambient and Mitigated Pumping Plants Operation Noise 
Page 14 

 
 

 

 

A P P E N D I X   C 
 

Acoustical Terminology 
 

A-Weighted Sound Level, dBA: The sound pressure level in decibels as measured on a sound 
level meter using the A-weighting filter network.  The A-
weighting filter de-emphasizes the very low and very high 
frequency components of the sound in a manner similar to the 
response of the human ear and gives good correlation with 
subjective reactions to noise.  Also called the sound level or 
noise level. 

CNEL:  Community Noise Equivalent Level.  The average equivalent 
sound level during a 24 hour day, obtained after addition of 
five decibels to sound levels in the evening from 7:00 p.m. to 
10:00 p.m. and ten decibels to sound levels in the night 
between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.  The-CNEL is typically 
within ±1 dB of the Day Night Level (DNL or Ldn). 

Decibel, dB: A unit for describing the amplitude of sound, equal to 20 times 
the logarithm to the base 10 of the ratio of the pressure of the 
sound measured to the reference pressure, which is 20 
micropascals. 

Leq:  Equivalent Sound Level.  The constant sound level containing 
the same total energy as a measured time-varying sound over a 
given sample period.  Leq is often measured or computed for 
15-20 minutes or for 1, 8 or 24-hour time periods.  Also called 
the energy average sound level. 

 



Advanced Engineering Acoustics 
663 Bristol Avenue 

Simi Valley, California 93065-5402 
(805) 583-8207 - Voice     (805) 231-1242 - Cell     (805) 522-6636 - Fax 

 
 

June 12, 2015 
 
Mr. Neil Cole  
Casitas Municipal Water District  
1055 N. Ventura Avenue 
Oak View , CA 93022 
 
SUBJECT: Casitas Municipal Water District (CMWD) - 4m Pumping Plant 
 AEA Comments regarding Meridian Consultants Noise Study Report 
 
Dear Mr. Cole: 
 
At your request, Advanced Engineering Acoustics (AEA) has conducted a review of the Meridian 
noise study report, dated May 12, 2015, for the subject 4m Pumping Plant.  This letter report 
summarizes our thoughts after reviewing the Meridian report. 
 
Fundamentals of Sound  -  Physically, sound pressure magnitude is measured and quantified in terms 
of the decibel (dB), which is associated with a logarithmic scale based on the ratio of a measured 
sound pressure to the reference sound pressure of 20 micropascal (20 Pa = 20 x 10-6 N/m2).  
However, the decibel system can be very confusing.  For example, doubling or halving the number 
of sources of equal noise (a 2-fold change in acoustic energy) changes the receptor noise by only 3 
dB, which is a barely perceptible environmental sound change for humans.  Thus, 70 dB + 70 dB = 
73 dB.  However, doubling or halving the sound loudness at the receiver results from a 10 dB 
change and also represents a 10-fold change in the acoustic energy.  Thus, ten 70 dB sources 
equidistant from a receiver is equivalent to an 80 dB source and sounds twice as loud.  So, the issues 
of loudness (pressure) and energy (power) can be confusing to most people. 
 
Meridian Report Review Comments  -  On page 2, 2nd ¶, the Meridian report states, “… C‐level 
readings are usually higher than A‐weighted readings and more accurately reflect perceived noise levels. The 
dB(C) level is appropriate to consider when the noise source is a mechanical equipment system to account for 

both low frequency (i.e., bass) and the high sound levels of the noise source.”  AEA Comments:  If by 
“perceived” Meridian means human hearing capability, then we disagree with this statement.  The 
C-weighted sound level is generally higher than the A-weighted sound level, as Meridian correctly 
says, but it is nearly unweighted across the audible frequency range of humans and is only weighted 
at the higher and lower ends of the audible frequency spectrum.  It is not representative of the human 
hearing response for low and moderate levels of noise.  It is more nearly representative of the human 
hearing response for very high levels of noise, such as on a firing range.  Thus, the C-weighted 
sound level would not be appropriate for the measurement of noise coming from pumps and motors 
that are the typical size of those at the 4m Pumping Plant. 
 
On page 3, 2nd, 3rd, and 4th ¶, the Meridian report quotes three paragraphs from the Noise Chapter of 
the Hazards Appendix to the Ventura County General Plan (which incidentally is just beginning the 
process of being updated over the next few years).  The paragraphs are labeled “Unusual Spectral 
Content - … , Unusual Temporal Characteristics - … , and Substantial Increase in Background 



Casitas Municipal Water District (CMWD) - 4m Pumping Plant 
AEA Comments regarding Meridian Consultants Noise Study Report  
Page 2 

 
Noise - ”  AEA Comments:  These Hazard Appendix paragraphs deal with noise-related subjects 
contained in the General Plan EIR.  The purpose of these discussions is to educate and make people 
aware of these acoustic principles.  They do not rise to the status of County noise limits nor 
adjustments to noise limits, according to the Ventura County Planning Division.  The Meridian 
report correctly reports the actual County hourly noise limits for noise generators potentially 
impacting sensitive noise receptors, such as residences, during the daytime, evening and nighttime 
hours.  These noise limits are contained in the actual General Plan itself under the heading “Goals, 
Policies and Programs.  They consist of (1) different fixed limits on hourly energy-averaged noise 
for day, evening and night or (2) the ambient hourly energy-averaged noise plus 3 dB, whichever is 
greater.   
 
If the ambient noise is high enough so the ambient-based noise limits apply, the actual noise source 
limit (without the ambient component) at the receptor would need to be the hourly ambient noise 
level so that the energy sum would be 3 dB higher.  For planning purposes, just note that the hourly 
ambient noise varies on a daily basis, so in reality one would need to identify the minimum hourly 
ambient noise level that is greater than the fixed hourly noise limit for that hour and design 
equipment noise controls for that ambient noise level.  Obviously, if the ambient noise is lower than 
the hourly fixed noise limit by 3 dB or more, the hourly fixed noise limit is the noise control design 
goal at the receptor location, factoring in all the project noise sources that operate at the same time. 
 
On page 6, 2nd ¶, the Meridian report states, “The highest hourly noise level measured at the 
residence was 58.9 dBA (see Appendix A). Pumping operations can occur at any point over the 
course of a 24 hour period and, thus, could generate hourly noise levels up to 58.9 dBA at the 
closest residence when in operation.”  AEA Comments:  It is obvious from their measured noise 
data, given in their report’s Appendix A, Noise Measurement Location 4, that the highest hourly 
noise level of 58.9 dBA at the nearest residence occurred at the first five minutes of their 24-hour 
measurement period and did not occur that high ever again.  They make no attempt to identify the 
source of the high 91 dBA maximum noise level that occurred at 11:13:44 p.m. and resulted in the 
first hourly noise level being 58.9 dBA.  An instantaneous maximum noise level as high as 91 dBA 
at the nearest residence (Location 4) would require the 4m Pumping Plant maximum noise at that 
moment in time to be approximately 124 dBA.  Unfortunately, it appears that Meridian only used 
one sound meter and moved it from place to place, so they did not have a pump noise meter and a 
residence noise meter operating together to catch the pump noise at the time of the highest noise at 
the residence.  However, looking at their pump noise data at Locations 1, 2 and 3, the highest pump 
noise measured over their 15 minute monitoring period was 78 dBA at 10:05:22, about 5 minutes 
after beginning their measurement at Location 2.  This highest maximum pump noise level is 
nowhere close to the 124 dBA needed to cause a maximum noise of 91 dBA and an hourly average 
noise level of 58.9 dBA at the residence.  Then what caused that high noise level at the residence?  
Clearly it was not any of the 4m Pumping Plant pumps.  But their report states that the pumping 
plant “could generate hourly noise levels up to 58.9 dBA at the closest residence when in 
operation.”  This statement is incorrect and not substantiated by their noise data nor AEA’s noise 
data and noise modeling results. 
 
On page 6, 3rd ¶, the Meridian report correctly states, “It was previously determined (see referenced 
Advanced Engineering Acoustics report dated January 23, 2015), that the 4M pump operations did not exceed 
the County daytime, evening, and nighttime hour [noise limits].  Pump operations did occur during the day, 



Casitas Municipal Water District (CMWD) - 4m Pumping Plant 
AEA Comments regarding Meridian Consultants Noise Study Report  
Page 3 

 
evening, and nighttime hours during the [both consultant’s] noise measurement.  The [Meridian] noise 
measurement was conducted at the closest residence approximately 200 feet to the west and these 
measurements did not exceed the 55 dBA Leq(1 hour), 50 dBA Leq(1 hour), and 45 dBA Leq(1 hour).” [edits 

added by AEA].  AEA Comment:  We believe this paragraph to be the most accurate and most relevant 
of their report.  To us much of the earlier portions of the report could easily mislead and confuse the 
general public regarding Ventura County noise policies and limits. 
 
Findings and Conclusions  -  We have reviewed the Meridian noise study report for the 4m Pumping Plant 
any potential for non-compliance with the Ventura County noise limits for noise sources affecting sensitive 
receptors, such as residences.  We find some statements in the report to be inaccurate and incorrect.  We 
find that the most relevant statement in the report regarding this particular situation is their second to last 
paragraph regarding total compliance by the water pumping plant operating equipment with the current 
Ventura County outdoor noise limits at sensitive receptors. 

This concludes our report on our review of the Meridian Consultants noise study report of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District 4m Plant mitigated pump/motor noise.  If you have any questions 
regarding this report, please contact us by phone or email. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Marlund E. Hale, Ph.D., INCE (full member) 
noisedoc@aol.com  
 

mailto:noisedoc@aol.com


 

 

 

910 Hampshire Road, Suite V 
Westlake Village, California 91631  
Tel. 805.367.5720 Fax. 805.367.5733 

  MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
Date: May 12, 2015 
 
To:  Brian Holly 
  4877 Reeves Road 
  Ojai, California 93023 
 
From: Chris Hampson, Project Manager 
 
Subject: Ambient and Operations Noise Measurements, Casitas Municipal Water District – 4M 

Pumping Plant, Ojai, CA  
 

Introduction 

Meridian Consultants was retained by Mr. Brian Holly to conduct ambient noise measurements during 

operation of the Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas) 4M groundwater pumps located of Reeves 

Road in Ojai, California.  

Meridian Consultants conducted one 1-hour noise measurement approximately 5 feet north of Pump 

No. 3 on Thursday, April 2, 2015, between 8:50 AM and 9:50 AM to document noise levels during 

groundwater extraction activities. Two additional 15-minute noise measurements were conducted 

approximately 5 feet north of Pump No. 2 and Pump No. 1, respectively, between approximately 9:55 

AM and 10:40 AM on Thursday, April 2, 2015. Finally, a 24 hour noise measurement was conducted 

adjacent to the nearest residence located west of the Casitas 4M groundwater pumps. Noise 

measurements were taken using a Larson Davis Sound Level Meter, which meets the American National 

Standards Institute (ANSI) for general environmental noise measurement instrumentation. The noise 

measurement location was logged in the field using GPS positioning and can been seen in Figure 1, 

Noise Measurement Locations. Weather conditions were clear, with light winds ranging from 0 to 2 

miles per hour (mph) and the temperature measuring around 71°F. 

Fundamentals of Noise 

The decibel (dB) scale is used to quantify sound intensity. Because sound pressure can vary enormously 

within the range of human hearing, a logarithmic loudness scale is used to keep sound intensity 

numbers at a convenient and manageable level. The human ear is not equally sensitive to all frequencies 

in the entire spectrum; therefore, noise measurements are weighted more heavily for frequencies to 

which humans are sensitive in a process called A-weighting, written dBA. The A-weighted sound level is 

measured on a logarithmic scale such that a doubling of sound energy results in a 3.0 dBA increase in 



Ambient and Operation Noise Measurements Technical Noise Report, Ojai, CA 
May 12, 2015 
Page 2 

 

noise level. In general, changes in a noise level measuring less than 3.0 dBA are not typically noticed by 

the human ear.1 Changes from 3 to 5 dBA may be noticed by some individuals who are extremely 

sensitive to changes in noise. An increase greater than 5 dBA is readily noticeable, while the human ear 

perceives a 10 dBA increase in sound level to be a doubling of sound volume. 

Decibel readings are weighted to reflect sensitivities to different frequencies. As discussed above, the 

A weighting is intended to reflect human sensitivity to higher frequencies, while the C weighting 

incorporates low frequencies. Single-number dB levels cannot accurately represent human perception, 

because the single number does not capture the differences in frequencies and quality of the sound. In 

addition, when measuring environmental noise with a low-frequency component, including mechanical 

noise, C-level readings are usually higher than A-weighted readings and more accurately reflect 

perceived noise levels. The dB(C) level is appropriate to consider when the noise source is a mechanical 

equipment system to account for both low frequency (i.e., bass) and the high sound levels of the noise 

source. 

Different types of scales are used to characterize the time-varying nature of sound. Applicable scales 

include the maximum noise level (Lmax), equivalent noise level (Leq), and the minimum noise level 

(Lmin). Lmax is the maximum noise level measured during a specified period. Leq is the average A-

weighted sound level measured over a given time interval. Leq can be measured over any period, but is 

typically measured for 1-minute, 15-minute, 1-hour, or 24-hour periods. Lmin is the minimum noise 

level measured during a specified period.  

Sound generated by a point source typically diminishes (attenuates) at a rate of 6 dBA for each doubling 

of distance from the source to the receptor at acoustically hard sites, and at a rate of 7.5 dBA at 

acoustically soft sites.
2
 A hard, or reflective, site consists of asphalt, concrete, or very hard-packed soil, 

which do not provide excess ground-effect attenuation. An acoustically soft or absorptive site is 

characteristic of normal earth and most ground with vegetation. 

Ventura County Noise Ordinance 

Noise exposure regulatory criteria are concerned largely with controlling location of new residences in 

existing environments. More stringent subjective criteria may be applicable to the case of introducing 

                                                           
1 US Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, Fundamentals and Abatement of Highway Traffic 

Noise (Springfield, VA: US Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, September 1980), p. 81. 
2  U.S. Department of Transportation (September 1980, p. 97) 



Ambient and Operation Noise Measurements Technical Noise Report, Ojai, CA 
May 12, 2015 
Page 3 

 

noise sources into existing noise-sensitive areas. The following are types of factors that bear 

consideration: 

Unusual Spectral Content - Intruding noises which contain narrow band or "pure tone" spectral 

components which are clearly audible have a high subjective annoyance potential even if overall levels 

are within the normally acceptable range. As an objective measure of this, if the noise level in any one-

third octave frequency band exceeds the arithmetic average of the level in the two adjacent bands by 

more than 5 dB, a 5 dB increase is typically applied to the overall level for purposes of assessing impacts. 

Unusual Temporal Characteristics - Impulsive or percussive noises will have an annoyance potential 

which exceeds that predicted by long-term average measures such as CNEL or Ldn. A 5 dB increase is 

typically applied if such characteristics are "audible." 

Substantial Increase in Background Level – If the intruding noise results in an increase of more than 

approximately 5 dB in the background noise level (L90), a subjective awareness of a degradation in 

environmental quality is very likely. It is common to adopt an ambient base level, typically in the range 

of 40 to 45 dBA, or the prevailing level, whichever is higher. Continuous noise sources that cause this 

level to be exceeded by more than 5 dB are then judged as excessive.3  

For purposes of County noise enforcement and evaluation, codes should be based on the hourly time-

average sound level or the CNEL, with a penalty factor of 5 dB for severe spectral irregularities and/or 

impulsive temporal characteristics.4  

According to the County of Ventura General Plan Hazards Appendix: Noise, noise generators proposed 

to be located near any noise sensitive use shall incorporate noise control measures so that ongoing 

outdoor noise levels received by the noise sensitive receptor, measured at the exterior wall of the 

building, does not exceed any of the following standards:  

a) Leq1H of 55 dBA or ambient noise level plus 3 dBA, whichever is greater, during any hour from 

6:00 AM to 7:00 PM.  

b) Leq1H of 50 dBA or ambient noise level plus 3 dBA, whichever is greater, during any hour from 

7:00 PM to 10:00 PM.  

                                                           
3 Ventura County General Plan, Hazards Appendix, (June 28, 2011), page 91. 
4 Ventura County General Plan, Hazards Appendix, (June 28, 2011), page 92. 



Ambient and Operation Noise Measurements Technical Noise Report, Ojai, CA 
May 12, 2015 
Page 4 

 

c) Leq1H of 45 dBA or ambient noise level plus 3 dBA, whichever is greater, during any hour from 

10:00 PM to 6:00 AM. 

Water Pumps - Water pumps generally produce a high-pitched whine and overall noise levels in the 

range 50 to 65 dBA at 50 feet, depending upon the size of the pump. At a distance of 100 feet, a 

proximity within which adjacent residences have been observed, a large continuously operating pump 

could produce CNEL 65. This would be a significant noise impact, as well as an annoying condition, due 

to the tonal character of the noise.  

Noise Measurements 

Noise sources within the area of the 4M plant and residences included typical residential sound (i.e., 

noise from garage doors being closed), roadway noise along Peeves Road, and noise from groundwater 

wells located at the CMWD 4M pumping plant.  

Table 1, Short Term Noise Measurements, provides measured noise levels approximately 5 feet from 

operation of the 4M pumps. As indicated in Table 1, the 15-minute averages ranged between 63.5 dBA 

and 71.4 dBA and ranged from 67.8 dBC and 71.9 dBC. It should be noted that the difference noise levels 

between Pump 2 and Pump 1 and Pump 3 are greater than 3 dBA (the level at which one is able to 

perceive a difference in noise levels). The noise measurement data is located in Appendix A. Appendix B 

contains observations and the location of each measurement location.  

Table 1 
Short Term Noise Measurements  

Pump Number Time Leq (dBA) 

Difference 
between 

Pump 2 (dBA) Leq (dBC) 

Difference 
between 

Pump 2 (dBC) 
1a 10:23 – 10:38 AM 63.5 (- 7.9) 67.8 (- 4.1) 

2b 9:59 – 10:14 AM 71.4 -- 71.9 -- 

3b 8:50 – 9:50 AM 67.4 (-4.0) 69.7 (- 2.2) 
   
Appendix A contains data sheets for each measurement location.  
a One (1) hour measurement during operation of the pump. 
b 15 minute measurement during operation of the pump. 
Abbreviations: Leq = equivalent sound level average; dBA = A-weighted decibel; dBC = C-weighted decibel 

 

Table 2, Long Term Noise Measurement, provides the 24 hour CNEL A weighted and C weighted noise 

average at the residence to the west of the 4M pumps. The difference results in a greater than 5 dB 

increase in A and C weighted decibel measurements. This indicates that there is an unusual spectral 

content or an unusual temporal noise characteristic.  



Ambient and Operation Noise Measurements Technical Noise Report, Ojai, CA 
May 12, 2015 
Page 5 

 

Table 2 
Long Term Noise Measurement  

Leq (CNEL dBA) Leq (dBC) Difference (dB) 
46.9 53.5 6.6 

   
Appendix A contains data sheets for the long term measurement.  
*Please note that a 24 hour measurement was conducted adjacent to the 
closest residence to the 4M pumps. 
** Values reported are the 24 hour noise averages.  
Abbreviations: Leq = equivalent sound level average; dBA = A-weighted 
decibel; dBC = C-weighted decibel 

 

Figure 2, Short-Term 4M Pumping Operations, illustrates the steady sound levels in dBA and dBC 

approximately 5 feet from each of the three pumps. Figure 3, Sound Levels at Closest Residence to 4M 

Pumps, illustrates the 1-minute sound level averages in both dBA and dBC.  

Table 3, Background (L90) Noise Levels at Closest Residence, provides the L90 (or background level of 

the noise environment) at the residence approximately 200 feet west of the 4M pumping plant. 

Table 3 
Background (L90) Noise Levels at Closest Residence 

Time 

L(90) dBA 

4M Pumps Operation 4M Pumps Non-Operation 
Difference Operation vs 

Non-Operation 
11 AM – 8 PM 33.2 to 38.7 -- 14.7 to 17.2 

9 PM – 1 AM -- 18.5 to 21.5 -- 

2 AM – 11 AM 29.2 to 36.0 -- 10.7 to 14.5 
   
Source: Appendix A Measurement Location 4. 
Note: Please note that the 4M pumps were only in operation for a portion of the 8 to 9 PM hour and the 1 to 2 AM hour and have not been 
included for this reason.  
Abbreviations: L(90) dBA = background level of the noise environment 

 

Data Summary 

Table 1 indicates that there is a distinguishable noise difference between Pump 2 and Pumps 1 and 3 

during pumping operations. According to information from the client, all three pumps contain motor 

mutes to suppress noise during pumping operations. As demonstrated in the Advanced Engineering 

Acoustics report prepared January 23, 2015, the motor mutes did result in a reduction in noise levels 

during operation. However, there appears to be a distinguishable difference between Pump 2 and 

Pumps 1 and 3.  



Ambient and Operation Noise Measurements Technical Noise Report, Ojai, CA 
May 12, 2015 
Page 6 

 

Table 2 indicates that during pumping operations (Appendix C) resulted in an increase greater than 5 dB 

between A-weighted and C-weighted measurements. As discussed previously, noise measurements 

tonal in nature and are observed as “audible” (see sound recording in Appendix D) when there is an 

increase of 5 dB or more. Accordingly, a 5 dB increase is typically applied to long term average 

measurements such as CNEL. Figure 2 illustrates the steady state sound levels when the pumps are in 

operation. As shown in Figure 3, sound levels at the residence ranged between 20 to 25 dB when no 4M 

pumps were in operation. Around 1:30 AM, 4M Pump No. 3 became operational and resulted in a 10 dB 

increase at the residence. Table 3 indicates that there is a minimum increase of 10.7 dBA in the L(90) 

noise environment when the pumps are in operation when compared to when they are not in 

operation. Pursuant to the Ventura County General Plan Hazards Appendix, an increase of 5 dBA or 

more indicates a continuous noise source that is judged as excessive. As a point of perspective, for every 

10 dB increase, the acoustic energy increases 10-fold. 

As indicated in the data measurements and sound recordings, there is a difference in noise emanating 

from the 4M wells that result in an identifiable annoyance and intruding noise levels to the surrounding 

residences. Please note that the analysis herein is based on one pumping scenario. The highest hourly 

noise level measured at the residence was 58.9 dBA (see Appendix A). Pumping operations can occur at 

any point over the course of a 24 hour period and, thus, could generate hourly noise levels up to 58.9 

dBA at the closest residence when in operation.  

It was previously determined (see referenced Advanced Engineering Acoustics report dated January 23, 

2015), that the 4M pump operations did not exceed the County daytime, evening, and nighttime hours. 

Pump operations did occur during the day, evening, and nighttime hours during the noise measurement. 

The noise measurement was conducted at the closest residence approximately 200 feet to the west and 

these measurements did not exceed the 55 dBA Leq(1 hour), 50 dBA Leq(1 hour), and 45 dBA Leq(1 

hour).  

If any questions or clarification is needed, please feel free to contact me at (805) 367-5727 or via email 

at maustin@meridianconusltantsllc.com, or contact Chris Hampson at (805) 367-5734. 

Sincerely, 

 

 
Mark Austin 
Partner  



Noise Measurement Locations

FIGURE  1
SOURCE:  Google Earth - 2015;

085-001-15

1
2

3

4

APPROXIMATE SCALE IN FEET

50250 100

N

Legend:

Long Term Location4

Residence

Short Term#



4M Pump Operation Measurements

FIGURE  2

085-001-15

60.0

62.0

64.0

66.0

68.0

70.0

72.0

74.0

76.0

78.0

08:45:36 09:00:00 09:14:24 09:28:48 09:43:12 09:57:36 10:12:00 10:26:24 10:40:48

De
ci

be
l (

dB
)

Time

4M Pump Operation Measurements

LCeq

LCeq

LCeq

LAeq

LAeq

LCeq

Pump 3

Pump 2
Pump 1



Residence Closest to 4M Pumps

FIGURE 3

085-001-15

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

9:36:00 AM 2:24:00 PM 7:12:00 PM 12:00:00 AM 4:48:00 AM 9:36:00 AM 2:24:00 PM

De
ci

be
l (

dB
)

Time

Residence Closest to 4M Pumps

LAeq

LCeq

4M Pumps in Operation

4M Pumps Not in Operation

4M Pumps in Operation



 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

Ambient Noise Measurements 



Noise Measurement Location  1

Record # Date Time Duration Run Time Pause LAeq LAE LASmin LASmin Time LASmax

1 2015/04/02 08:50:20 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 00:00:00.0 67.3 102.9 64.2 09:40:51 76.2

LASmax Time LApeak (max) LApeak (max) Time SPL 1 Count Duration LAS5.00 LAS10.00 LAS33.30 LAS50.00 LAS66.60 LAS90.00

09:09:48 97.5 09:28:23 1 3601.2 68.9 68.2 67.4 67.0 66.7 65.8

LCeq LAeq LCeq - LAeq LAIeq LAeq LAIeq-LAeq# Overloads Duration

69.7 67.3 2.4 67.8 67.3 0.4 0 0.0



Noise Measurement Location 2

Record # Date Time Duration Run Time Pause LAeq LAE LASmin LASmin Time LASmax

1 2015/04/02 09:59:02 00:15:00.4 00:15:00.4 00:00:00.0 71.4 101.0 70.3 10:11:45 78.0

LASmax Time LApeak (max) LApeak (max) Time SPL 1 Count Duration LAS5.00 LAS10.00 LAS33.30 LAS50.00 LAS66.60 LAS90.00

10:05:22 98.3 10:05:22 1 900.3 72.0 71.9 71.6 71.3 71.1 70.8

LCeq LAeq LCeq - LAeq LAIeq LAeq LAIeq-LAeq # Overloads Duration

71.9 71.4 0.5 71.6 71.4 0.2 0 0.0



Noise Measurement Location 3

Record # Date Time Duration Run Time Pause LAeq LAE LASmin LASmin Time LASmax

1 2015/04/02 10:23:54 00:15:00.6 00:15:00.6 00:00:00.0 63.5 93.1 60.5 10:37:34 73.7

LASmax Time LApeak (max) LApeak (max) Time SPL 1 Count Duration LAS5.00 LAS10.00 LAS33.30 LAS50.00 LAS66.60 LAS90.00

10:26:49 90.8 10:31:22 16 141.3 66.9 64.6 62.9 62.5 62.2 61.6

LCeq LAeq LCeq - LAeq LAIeq LAeq LAIeq-LAeq# Overloads Duration

67.8 63.5 4.2 64.2 63.5 0.7 0 0.0



Noise Measurement Location 4

Measurement Description

Start 2015/04/02  11:08:43

Stop 2015/04/03  11:11:50

Duration 1 Day 00:03:01.9

Run Time 1 Day 00:03:01.9

Pause 0:00:00.0

Pre Calibration 2015/04/02  8:46:06

Post Calibration None

Calibration Deviation ---

Results

LAeq 46.9 dB

LAE 96.3 dB

EA 470.371 µPa²h

LApeak (max) 2015/04/02  11:08:55 106.5 dB

LASmax 2015/04/02  11:13:44 91.0 dB

LASmin 2015/04/03  0:48:29 17.8 dB

SEA -99.9 dB

LAS > 65.0 dB (Exceedence Counts / Duration) 26 88.2 s

LAS > 85.0 dB (Exceedence Counts / Duration) 1 2.8 s

LApeak > 135.0 dB (Exceedence Counts / Duration) 0 0.0 s

LApeak > 137.0 dB (Exceedence Counts / Duration) 0 0.0 s

LApeak > 140.0 dB (Exceedence Counts / Duration) 0 0.0 s

Community Noise Ldn LDay 07:00-22:00 LNight 22:00-07:00 Lden LDay 07:00-19:00

47.8 48.8 35.6 48.0 49.7

LEvening 19:00-22:00 LNight 22:00-07:00

38.6 35.6

LCeq 53.5 dB

LAeq 46.9 dB

LCeq - LAeq 6.6 dB

LAIeq 54.2 dB



Noise Measurement Location 4

Record # Date Time Duration Run Time LAeq LAE LASmin LASmin Time LASmax LASmax Time LApeak (max)

1 2015/04/02 11:08:43 AM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 58.9 94.4 30.5 11:32:00 91.0 11:13:44 106.5

2 2015/04/02 12:08:43 PM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 44.5 80.1 30.2 12:09:04 62.6 12:41:26 78.3

3 2015/04/02 1:08:43 PM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 44.5 80.1 35.5 13:53:17 65.7 13:48:32 81.9

4 2015/04/02 2:08:43 PM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 45.2 80.8 32.4 14:29:31 61.6 14:16:45 83.5

5 2015/04/02 3:08:43 PM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 44.6 80.2 34.6 15:22:09 61.7 15:38:09 75.2

6 2015/04/02 4:08:43 PM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 47.0 82.6 31.6 16:32:53 71.6 16:37:39 100.3

7 2015/04/02 5:08:43 PM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 43.5 79.0 29.8 17:53:46 63.3 17:32:14 76.0

8 2015/04/02 6:08:43 PM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 44.7 80.2 30.6 18:23:10 66.2 18:30:32 91.6

9 2015/04/02 7:08:43 PM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 40.2 75.8 30.1 19:30:29 56.7 19:09:19 87.9

10 2015/04/02 8:08:43 PM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 38.6 74.1 21.0 21:06:23 56.8 20:28:01 77.2

11 2015/04/02 9:08:43 PM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 33.7 69.2 19.5 21:59:29 52.4 22:05:13 73.4

12 2015/04/02 10:08:43 PM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 28.9 64.5 18.6 22:56:43 52.5 22:15:04 69.6

13 2015/04/02 11:08:43 PM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 24.2 59.8 18.3 23:53:22 49.7 23:28:36 66.6

14 2015/04/03 12:08:43 AM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 20.3 55.8 17.8 00:48:29 37.3 00:42:08 65.4

15 2015/04/03 1:08:43 AM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 29.9 65.4 17.9 01:16:51 45.6 01:53:06 67.6

16 2015/04/03 2:08:43 AM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 33.0 68.5 26.3 02:32:28 54.7 02:46:20 70.1

17 2015/04/03 3:08:43 AM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 32.7 68.2 25.8 04:05:45 48.5 03:33:10 63.3

18 2015/04/03 4:08:43 AM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 33.8 69.4 26.5 04:33:03 53.8 05:06:43 70.8

19 2015/04/03 5:08:43 AM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 36.7 72.2 27.2 05:57:24 57.4 06:05:25 73.1

20 2015/04/03 6:08:43 AM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 43.1 78.7 29.4 06:12:26 61.6 06:57:02 75.0

21 2015/04/03 7:08:43 AM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 45.0 80.6 30.9 07:13:48 68.7 07:12:31 80.9

22 2015/04/03 8:08:43 AM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 45.5 81.0 32.1 08:27:07 64.7 08:56:17 77.7

23 2015/04/03 9:08:43 AM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 43.1 78.6 29.3 09:33:36 58.0 09:57:28 81.1

24 2015/04/03 10:08:43 AM 01:00:00.0 01:00:00.0 46.8 82.4 31.4 10:24:14 74.7 10:31:35 104.7

25 2015/04/03 11:08:43 AM 00:02:32.6 00:02:32.6 43.3 65.1 34.7 11:10:45 57.6 11:11:07 84.3

26 2015/04/03 11:11:21 AM 00:00:29.3 00:00:29.3 43.9 58.5 38.8 11:11:22 52.9 11:11:46 80.7



Noise Measurement Location 4

Record # LApeak (max) Time LAS5.00 LAS10.00 LAS33.30 LAS50.00 LAS66.60 LAS90.00 LCeq LAeq LCeq - LAeq LAIeq LAeq LAIeq-LAeq

1 11:08:55 51.2 47.5 41.0 38.6 37.2 34.7 59.3 58.9 0.4 66.7 58.9 7.9

2 13:03:59 50.6 48.2 42.4 39.5 37.3 34.4 55.7 44.5 11.1 48.8 44.5 4.2

3 13:48:32 49.3 47.4 43.5 42.2 41.0 38.7 55.8 44.5 11.3 48.1 44.5 3.6

4 14:16:45 50.9 48.9 44.0 42.0 40.2 37.4 55.2 45.2 10.0 49.4 45.2 4.2

5 15:38:09 50.0 47.7 43.2 41.6 40.5 38.6 55.2 44.6 10.5 47.9 44.6 3.2

6 16:37:39 51.1 48.1 41.4 38.9 37.4 35.4 55.2 47.0 8.2 56.6 47.0 9.6

7 17:11:40 48.9 45.7 39.4 37.2 35.9 33.9 56.0 43.5 12.5 46.4 43.5 2.9

8 18:56:36 50.0 47.3 40.1 37.1 35.3 33.3 54.4 44.7 9.7 52.3 44.7 7.6

9 19:09:19 46.4 43.4 37.5 36.2 35.0 33.2 50.5 40.2 10.3 44.2 40.2 4.0

10 20:28:01 45.1 41.5 36.1 34.1 29.0 25.0 49.5 38.6 10.9 41.8 38.6 3.3

11 21:45:35 39.7 33.7 27.5 25.3 23.7 21.5 45.7 33.7 12.1 38.4 33.7 4.7

12 22:15:04 29.1 26.9 23.4 22.2 21.4 20.2 42.2 28.9 13.3 32.1 28.9 3.2

13 23:28:36 27.5 24.8 21.4 20.5 19.8 19.1 38.5 24.2 14.3 28.0 24.2 3.8

14 00:42:07 22.8 21.8 19.9 19.3 19.0 18.5 35.8 20.3 15.6 23.8 20.3 3.5

15 01:56:17 34.1 33.1 30.4 28.7 19.8 18.6 41.0 29.9 11.1 30.8 29.9 1.0

16 02:46:20 35.3 34.7 32.8 31.8 30.9 29.2 38.8 33.0 5.8 34.0 33.0 1.0

17 03:33:10 35.7 34.9 32.9 32.0 30.9 29.2 39.0 32.7 6.3 33.1 32.7 0.5

18 04:43:22 36.2 35.0 32.9 32.0 31.0 29.3 45.2 33.8 11.4 35.4 33.8 1.5

19 05:24:09 40.0 36.5 33.8 32.7 31.8 30.0 46.7 36.7 10.0 39.5 36.7 2.8

20 06:57:02 47.7 45.7 42.0 40.0 38.1 34.8 52.3 43.1 9.2 46.1 43.1 3.0

21 07:12:30 49.9 46.5 40.8 38.5 36.9 34.6 57.0 45.0 12.0 49.0 45.0 3.9

22 08:56:16 51.1 48.8 43.0 40.6 38.8 36.0 57.4 45.5 11.9 49.2 45.5 3.8

23 09:12:54 49.5 46.6 40.2 38.2 36.9 34.8 51.3 43.1 8.3 47.5 43.1 4.5

24 10:31:35 51.5 48.2 41.7 39.3 37.6 35.4 56.3 46.8 9.5 54.4 46.8 7.5

25 11:11:07 48.0 46.4 41.7 39.7 38.2 36.2 56.1 43.3 12.8 52.0 43.3 8.7

26 11:11:46 49.7 46.7 41.7 41.2 40.8 39.7 58.5 43.9 14.7 52.4 43.9 8.6



Noise Measurement Location 4

LAeq 46.9 dB

LAIeq - LAeq 7.3 dB

# Overloads 0

Overload Duration 0.0 s

Statistics

LAS5.00 48.2 dB

LAS10.00 45.2 dB

LAS33.30 39.0 dB

LAS50.00 36.0 dB

LAS66.60 32.9 dB

LAS90.00 21.5 dB



 

APPENDIX B 

Noise Measurement Notes 



GENERAL INFORMATION 

 Date: 4/2/2015 – 4/3/2015 

 Time: 8:50 am (4/2/15) – 11:15 am (4/3/15) 

 Temperature: Approximately 71 degrees 

 Conditions: Clear 

 Wind Speed/Direction: Approximately 2 mph from North 

POINT ONE 

 Began run at 8:50 am 

o One hour measurement 

 File number 831_Data_018 

 Location is 5 feet north of Pump #3 

 Most noise is generated from the pump, with occasional vehicle noise from Reeves Road 

 9:05 am- motorcycle drives by 

 GPS coordinates: 

N 34.44804 
W 119.18578 

POINT TWO 

 Began run at 9:59 am 

o 15 minute measurement 

 File number 831_Data_019 

 Location is 5 feet north of Pump #2 

 Most noise is generated from the pump, with occasional vehicle noise from Reeves Road. 

 GPS coordinates: 

N 34.44806 
W 119.18579 



 

POINT THREE 

 Began run at 10:23 am 

o 15 minute measurement 

 File number 831_Data_020 

 Location is 5 feet north of Pump #1  

 Most noise generated by the pump with occasional vehicle noise from Reeves Road 

 10:37 am – Loud truck drives by 

 GPS coordinates: 

N 34.44802 
W 119.18574 
 

POINT FOUR 

 Began run at 11:08 am 

o 24 hour measurement 

 File number 831_Data_022 

 Location is at exterior wall of closest residence to pumps 

 GPS coordinates: 

N 34.44772 
W 119.18636 



 

APPENDIX C 

4M Pump operation Times 





 

APPENDIX D 

Sound Recording During Pump Operation  





 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
 
DATE:  July 17, 2015 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Denise Collin - Accounting Manager 
 
Re:  County of Ventura, Corrected Tax Rate for 2015-2016 Levy 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution to set the 2015-2016 corrected Tax Rate to $0.007083 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 
 
The County of Ventura annually submits to Casitas Municipal Water District the Assessed 
Valuations by Fund which is used to calculate and establish a tax rate to apply a levy within the 
District to pay for the cost of the State Water Project.   
 
At the regular Board Meeting on June 24th, 2015 Resolution Number 15-26 establishing the tax 
levy for State Water costs for 2015-2016 was approved by the Board, however erroneously the 
incorrect fund, 8604 was used in the calculation of the tax.  
 
The new calculation using the correct fund, 8605 resulted in a change in the tax rate. The 
approved incorrect tax rate was; $.007074 per hundred dollars of assessed market valuation.  
The correct tax rate is; $.007083 per hundred dollars of assessed market valuation resulting in a 
$.000009 increase. 
 
   



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION FIXING A TAX RATE FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 AND AUTHORIZING AND 

DIRECTING THE PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD TO EXECUTE A 
CERIFICATE REQUESTING THE VENTURA COUNTY 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TO LEVY SUCH TAX 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, the voters of the State of California passed Proposition 13 on June 6, 1978; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Proposition 13 limits tax rates to voter-approved indebtedness; and 
 

WHEREAS, the indebtedness for the State Water Project was approved by the voters of 
Ventura county along with all the voters of the State of California on November 8, 1960, and 
December 19, 1933 and the payments for fiscal year 2015-2016 totals $696,576.; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ventura county collection and administrative fees are estimated to be 
$1,623.; and are voter-approved, authorized expenditures; and  
 

WHEREAS,  on the basis of valuation figures furnished by the Ventura County Auditor, 
the amount to be raised by tax levy on unsecured personal property is $34,212.; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the basis of information furnished by the Ventura County Auditor, the 
amount to be raised by State subventions for voter-approved indebtedness amounts to $4,727.; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, it is estimated that $19,453.; will be received from the County in prior year 
tax delinquencies; and  
 

WHEREAS, taking account of the amount to be raised by tax levy on unsecured personal 
property, the amount to be raised by state subventions, and the amount to be received in prior 
delinquencies, the amount to be raised by taxation on secured property for voter-approved 
indebtedness of $626,392.; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the basis of figures furnished by the Ventura county Auditor, the net 
assessed/market valuation of local secured property, exclusive of the utility roll, is 
$8,842,998,318.; and the net assessed/market valuation of secured property on the utility roll is 
estimated at $332,731.; and the net assessed/market valuation of all secured property in Casitas is 
estimated at $8,776,265,918.; and 
 



WHEREAS, with a 2.500 percent allowance for delinquency on net local secured 
property of $9,522,658,321.; the current year delinquencies are estimated at $238,066,458.; and 
 

WHEREAS, the reduction for redevelopment assessments is 508,325,945.; and 
 

WHEREAS, the addition for the Homeowners Property Tax Relief exemption is 
$8,776,598,649.; and 
 

WHEREAS, the tax rate required to raise the necessary funds of $0.007083per hundred 
dollars of assessed/market valuation on all property within Casitas’ boundaries; 
 

WHEREAS, the tax rate in the previous year was $0.004672 per hundred dollars of 
assessed/market valuation; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District as follows: 
 

1. The tax rate of Casitas Municipal Water District on all property within Casitas’ 
boundaries for fiscal year 2015-2016 is hereby fixed at $0.007083 per hundred dollars 
of assessed/market valuation for voter-approved indebtedness. 

 
2. The president of the Board of Directors is hereby authorized and directed to execute a 

certificate in the form attached hereto. 
 

Adopted this 22th  day of July, 2015. 
 
 
 
                                                                                    ___________________________ 
       Mary Bergen, President 

Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Russ Baggerly, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 

 
 
 



 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 

 
 

The Board of Directors of Casitas Municipal Water District hereby certifies to the 
Board of Supervisors and Auditor of the County of Ventura as follows: 
 
1. Casitas has voter-approved indebtedness for fiscal year 2015-16 for the following: 

 
a. $696,576. for the State Water Project indebtedness which was approved by 

the voters of the State of California on November 8, 1960 and December 19, 
1933. 

 
2. It is hereby directed that at the time and in the manner required by law for the levying 

of taxes for County purposes for fiscal year 2015-16, the Board of Supervisors of 
Ventura county shall levy, in addition to such other tax as may be levied by such 
Board, a tax on all property within Casitas’ boundaries at the rate of $0.007083 per 
hundred dollars of assessed/market valuation.   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF this certificate has been executed on behalf of and at the 
direction of the Board of Directors of Casitas Municipal Water District by the President 
thereof this 22th day of July, 2015. 
 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Mary Bergen, President 

Casitas Municipal Water District 
 

 
 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
 
DATE:  July 17, 2015 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Denise Collin - Accounting Manager 
 
Re: Incode – (In-Site) modification for additional consumption history for customer 

access on the internet. 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Custom Programming / modification proposal in the amount of $5,000.00. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 
 
The District implemented Incode, our accounting system July 1, 2008.  Within Incode the District 
implemented a module called In-Site. In-Site allows our customers the ability to pay their bill on 
line with Master Card or Visa, view their billing history, previous payment history as well as view 
their consumption used.  Currently In-Site is limited to only two years of consumption data. 
 
The custom programming / modification would increase the consumption information available 
for the customer to view for an additional two years making a total of four years available. The 
cost of this modification is $5,000.00 and is not budgeted. 
 
 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
 
DATE:  July 17, 2015 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Denise Collin - Accounting Manager 
 
Re:  CalPERS Annual Unfunded Accrued Liability 06/30/2015. 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve payment of CalPERS unfunded Accrued Liability due of $161,892.00. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board, (GASB) 68 Statement was developed to 
improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for CalPERS 
pensions.  The GASB 68 Statement has an effective date for the fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2014 and will be implemented for the 2014/2015 fiscal year end Financial Statements.  
 
One of the GASB 68 requirements is to fund the UnFunded Accrued Liability to market value on 
an annual basis.  This is the point in which the net position (market value of assets) becomes 
insufficient to provide current and inactive employee benefits.   
 
The estimation of net position includes projections of contributions (employee and employer), 
investment earnings and projected benefits for a period that extends through the end of the 
employees lifecycle.   
 
The 06/30/2013 Unfunded Accrued Liability is due on 07/31/2015 and totals $161,892.00.  This 
amount can be paid in full or monthly in the amount of $13,988.00.  
  
 
 
 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Interdepartmental Memo 

DATE: June 19, 2015 
 
TO: Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
FROM: Tim Lawson, Recreation Maintenance Foreman 
 
SUBJECT: JETS TOILETS  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends purchasing and installing 5 Jets Toilet systems in the Shower House at Campground J 
at a cost of $6,375.00 to eliminate the chronic plumbing problems experienced with the current system. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW 
 
The Shower House in Camp J has major sewer pipe problems. The last contractor spent 6-7 hours trying to 
unplug one toilet on the men’s side due to roots clogging the pipe. This toilet has had to be closed to the 
public several times during the year due to the same problem.  If the 5 existing toilets are changed to Jets 
toilets the plugged plumbing can be bypassed eliminating the problem. The other option would be to close 
the Shower House, jack hammer out the piping and replace it rendering the Shower House unusable for an 
unknown period of time. 
.  
In September 2014, 4 Jets toilets were purchased for the Café Restrooms at a cost of $7,164.00.  As of mid 
June 2015 these toilets have been flushed over 8,000 times with no flushing or macerator system 
problems.  Also, the number of trips to the Ojai Valley Sanitation Plant to dump the waste have probably 
been reduced.  There are fewer problems with the Jet toilets than the typical toilets in the campgrounds 
which have flappers that stick open causing the toilets to run constantly and the sewer to overflow. Before 
the Jets toilets were installed at the Café, the tanks overflowed several times causing effluent to run down 
the ramp parking lot towards the Lake. 
 
It is estimated that from September to now with just 4 Jet toilets, the water saved is approximately 11,000 
gallons. While Casitas is in the public eye because of the drought, utilizing more efficient toilets would 
clearly show that Casitas is doing its part to save water for the future use of its customers. 
 
A future goal would be to install Jets toilets in all of the restrooms that have septic tanks to eliminate the 
chance of overflow and reduce the amount of pumping required, especially during the summer months. 
 
SUMMARY: 
Installation of the Jets toilets would eliminate plugged plumbing, reduce water use and waste, potentially 
reduce the number of dump trips and eliminate the need to dig up the existing sewer system.  In addition, 
currently, the cost of 5 new Jets toilets is less than the 4 purchased earlier.  

U:\Management\Agendas\Board meetings\2015\07-22-15\Memo re jet toilets.doc/Memo 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  July 17, 2014 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Establishment of Conservation Penalties 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors consider the setting of the conservation penalty. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 
 
On June 10, 2015, the Board of Directors adopted the update to the Water Efficiency and Allocation 
Program (WEAP).  The WEAP outlines the strategy to manage the Lake Casitas water supply and the 
water demands of Casitas customers through the assignment of individual water allocations and the 
implementation of stage demand reduction goals and measures.  The degree to which the staged 
demand reduction measures are implemented are predicated on the five stages of storage in Lake 
Casitas and the effectiveness of previous measure implementation to attain the goals desired to sustain 
the availability of the limited local water supplies.   
 
There are two specific demand reduction measures that were identified in the WEAP.  The first 
measure is the assignment of fair and equitable water allocations to individual customer accounts.  The 
second is the application of a conservation penalty that will be applied to each individual customer 
billing for each unit of water that is in excess of the customer’s adjusted allocation.    At this time, there 
is a need to consider the setting of the conservation penalty for the various water customer 
classifications. 
 
The conservation penalty is just that – a penalty on water use that is in excess of an individual 
customer’s water allocation, imposed as a regulatory charge - not a user fee or a charge for property 
related service that carries the procedural requirements for fees and charges. The conservation penalty 
would be set by the Board of Directors during their annual consideration of drought stage and demand 
reduction goals for each upcoming year, or the Board may decide to adjust the penalty during the year if 
the demand reduction goals are not being attained by customers.  The amount of the penalty must be 
reasonable and justified.  The revenues that are generated from the Conservation Penalties will 
supplement Casitas’ water conservation costs and provide revenue for water shortage related projects.  
The conservation penalties collected are not considered in the revenue setting of the Casitas budget 
and water rates that are directly related to normal cost of service conditions. 
 
There are two primary justifications for the application of a conservation penalty to water consumption 
that is in excess to the assigned allocations.  First and foremost is the responsibility that is incumbent 
upon all customers to use water only in a beneficial manner and not waste water so that water is 
available into the future.  The second justification is that the State of California has mandated a 32% 
reduction of urban water consumption in the Casitas service area from that consumed in the same 
months of 2012-13.  This mandate may require Casitas to reduce allocations and have incentives to 
reduce urban water use.  The conservation penalty is a signal to the customer that water use be 

 1 



curtailed to a level that is at or below the assigned allocation.   
 
There are several California water agencies that are addressing the serious limitation of water supply 
during the current drought with the application of a conservation penalty.  Some examples are as 
follows: 

• Montecito Water District - the penalty charge starts at $35 per unit for the first month of 
excessive water use and move to $45 per unit in the subsequent months of excessive water 
consumption. 

• City of Santa Cruz - a penalty of $50 per unit of excess water consumption. 
• East Bay Municipal Utility District (Oakland) – $2.00 per unit penalty for units over the 8-0 unit 

threshold. 
• Bella Vista Municipal Water District (Redding) – If customer use is 1 to 20 percent over base 

allotment, a $1.50 per unit penalty; for water consumption exceeding 20 percent of base 
allotment is a $2.50 per unit penalty. 

 
Casitas is at the initial implementation stage for monthly billing and the assignment of allocations to 
individual customers.    As we see, there is a wide range of conservation penalty that is being applied by 
various agencies and that there does not seem to be one method to establish the conservation penalty. 
It is important to send a signal to customers that excessive water use is occurring, it is also important to 
gain a positive reaction from the customer to make a change to water use. 
 
It was suggested at the Finance Committee meeting of July 17, 2015, the Board could establish a 
conservation penalty that would be a starting point for further evaluation and make subsequent changes 
that are based on the water demand reduction response by the Casitas customers.  An initial 
conservation penalty of $1.00 per unit be applied to customers that are over the monthly allocation 
assignment. This would be applied to over-allocation water use by the Residential and Multi-residential 
customer classifications.  The conservation penalty would be included in each monthly bill to the 
customer.  It was suggested that the conservation penalty for the annual allocation classifications be set 
at $0.25 per unit over the annual allocation.  This would include all other classifications except 
Residential and Multi-residential, and be billed at the end of the fiscal year.   
 
If there are any questions in this regard, please discuss your questions with me. 
 
 

 2 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO.   
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT  
SETTING CONSERVATION PENALTY FOR EXCESSIVE WATER USE 

PURSUANT TO WATER CODE SECTION 372, ET. SEQ. 
 

 WHEREAS, on June 10, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal 
Water District adopted the Water Efficiency and Allocation Program that established an 
allocation-based conservation water structure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to California Water Code Section 372 et seq, the District 
may impose a conservation charge on all increments of water use in excess of the basic 
use allocation. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal Water 
District ordains as follows: 
 

A conservation penalty, imposed as a regulatory charge, be set at $1.00 per unit 
of water be applied to monthly water use by a Casitas Residential and Multi-residential 
classification customer that is in excess of the individual customer’s assigned monthly 
water allocation be set at $1.00 for each unit that is in excess of the.  The conservation 
penalty shall be billed monthly. 

 
A conservation penalty, imposed as a regulatory charge, of $0.25 be applied to 

each unit of water use that is in excess of the assigned annual allocation to individual 
customers of the Agricultural, Agricultural-domestic, Industrial, Business, Inter-
departmental, Other, and Resale classifications.  The conservation penalty shall be 
billed at the end of the fiscal year to each individual customer that has accrued an 
excess water use.  

 
ADOPTED this 22th day of July 2015. 
 
 
      ________________________  
      Mary Bergen, President 
      Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Russ Baggerly, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 









CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Finance Committee 

 
DATE:   July 17, 2015 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:   General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
Re:   Finance Committee Meeting of July 17, 2015, at 0930 hours 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Peter Kaiser and Director Jim Word  
 General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 Accounting Manager, Denise Collin 
 Public:  Robert Davis, Brian Holly, Russ Baggerly, Misty Volaski 
  

2. Public comments.  None. 
 
3. Board/Management comments.  None.  
 
4. Review of draft Water Rate Study – Presentation by Raftelis Financial Inc. 

The Committee reviewed the initial draft water rate study.  Many questions were raised by the Committee. It 
was recommended that a Board workshop be scheduled to review the options that were provided in the 
water rate study.  The Board will be asked to set a workshop date and time. 
 

5. Discussion regarding the purchase of five jet toilets for the Shower house. 
The Committee was informed of the request by Park Maintenance staff to purchase special toilets that will 
resolve maintenance issues and reduce water use.  This item is to be moved to the Board for consideration 
and direction. 
 

6. Status of the Noise Abatement at Ojai Valley 4(M) and Upper Ojai Pump Plants. 
The Committee was informed that Casitas and the residents surrounding the pump plants have completed 
sound studies and seek further direction from the Board on the resolution of this matter.  Mr. Brian Holly 
informed the Board of his continued interest and concern as a neighbor to the district’s facilities.  This item 
will be moved to the Board for presentation and discussion. 
 

7. Discussion regarding the Conservation Surcharge. 
The Committee discussed the need to determine the conservation surcharge as specified in the Water 
Efficiency and Allocation Program.  This item will be moved to the Board for further discussion and direction 
to staff. 
 

8. Discussion regarding the invoice from CalPERS for $161,892 as a result of GASB 68. 
Denise Collin presented the justification for the CalPERS invoice.  This item will be moved to the Board for 
further discussion and direction to staff.  
 

9. Review of the proposal from Incode in the amount of $5,000 to provide an additional two more 
years of consumption history on the website. 
Denise Collin presented the justification for the cost to provide customer information and work needed to 
be completed by Incode.  This item will be moved to the Board for further discussion and direction to staff. 
 

10. Review of the Financial Statement for May 2015. 
The Committee heard a brief overview from Denise Collin.  
  

11. Review of the Water Consumption for May 2015. 
The Committee reviewed the water consumption numbers for the current fiscal year through June 2015.  
 

 1 



Consumption Report

Water Sales FY 2014-2015 (Acre-Feet)         Month to Date

2014 / 2015 2013 / 2014

Classification Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total Total

AD Ag-Domestic 391 706 398 712 355 368 59 109 127 413 365 473 4476.12 5320

AG Ag 341 518 432 550 374 234 67 83 99 347 233 294 3571.76 4065

C Commercial 91 99 93 79 43 29 9 11 16 26 42 49 587 724

DI Interdepartmental 18 3 22 4 10 37 6 4 2 5 12 36 159 119

F fire 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

I Industrial 1 6 1 3 2 3 2 2 0 3 2 4 29 22

OT Other 27 34 24 24 16 10 3 6 3 7 12 20 186 255

R Residential 212 132 224 116 180 86 99 51 82 63 127 140 1512 1738

RS - P Resale Pumped 68 174 157 178 104 97 29 15 13 27 35 35 932 1182

RS - G Resale Gravity 548 608 615 647 419 322 158 202 346 515 452 428 5260 5614

TE Temporary 2 6 6 4 3 1 0 0 0 4 3 4 33 55

Total 1699 2286 1972 2,317 1506 1187 432 483 688 1410 1283 1483 16,746 19,093

Total 2013/2014 2014 1910 2301 2122 1951 1437 1145 1713 1022 765 1003 1710 N/A 19093



Casitas Municipal Water District

CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) - Monthly Cost Analysis 

2014/2015

06/30/2015

Services Legal Labor Other Total

& Suplies Fees Expense Services Expenses

2011 / 2012 -289.50 42,560.00 11,098.37 0.00 53,368.87

2012 / 2013 831.82 223,462.77 14,836.68 0.00 239,131.27

2013 / 2014 29.89 91,878.06 3,835.65 0.00 95,743.60

July 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

August 0.00 840.00 0.00 0.00 840.00

September 0.00 96.00 0.00 0.00 96.00

October 0.00 22,258.61 0.00 0.00 22,258.61

November 0.00 696.00 0.00 0.00 696.00

December 0.00 2,134.00 0.00 0.00 2,134.00

January 0.00 510.00 0.00 0.00 510.00

Feburary 0.00 2,894.00 0.00 0.00 2,894.00

March 0.00 4,140.09 0.00 0.00 4,140.09

April 0.00 7,076.16 0.00 0.00 7,076.16

May 0.00 2,436.00 0.00 0.00 2,436.00

June 0.00 12,718.21 0.00 0.00 12,718.21

Total Cost YTD 0.00 55,799.07 0.00 0.00 55,799.07

Total Project Cost 572.21 413,699.90 29,770.70 0.00 444,042.81

Prepared by dcollin 07/15/2015 Page 1



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

07/15/15

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 06/14/2019 $1,375,776 $1,354,955 1.625% 10/03/2012 7.11% 1409

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379RN1 12/27/2024 $978,364 $978,324 2.840% 06/18/2014 5.13% 3402

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133802D8 11/23/2022 $1,477,575 $1,471,190 2.400% 11/19/2014 7.72% 2648

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 31338OA98 08/14/2024 $126,966 $127,228 2.500% 07/03/2014 0.67% 3269

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 31338OS73 10/11/2022 $699,720 $685,867 2.430% 08/11/2014 3.60% 2606

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313381ST3 01/17/2023 $250,346 $248,005 1.500% 09/08/2014 1.30% 2702

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313381TA3 01/17/2023 $277,619 $275,358 2.240% 09/08/2014 1.45% 2702

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EAZM3 07/24/2023 $1,658,682 $1,666,620 2.380% 09/16/2014 8.75% 2889

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EED31 04/28/2025 $2,990,523 $2,910,391 2.800% 06/02/2015 15.27% 3523

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EEXPO 01/28/2021 $735,834 $731,884 1.990% 06/17/2015 3.84% 1993

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF2 06/11/2021 $690,981 $668,679 5.625% 01/16/2013 3.51% 2126

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134A4VG8 11/17/2015 $706,777 $710,850 4.750% 06/17/2015 3.73% 122

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134G34R8 07/23/2021 $513,841 $506,391 2.000% 12/02/2014 2.66% 2168

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134G43A4 10/30/2024 $849,441 $844,697 2.500% 07/03/2014 4.43% 3345

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3135G0ES80 11/15/2016 $686,978 $690,793 1.375% 03/12/2012 3.63% 480

*TB Federal National Assn 3136G0K67 04/09/2021 $192,000 $189,492 2.000% 12/02/2014 0.99% 2064

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/2017 $1,086,100 $1,096,850 5.125% 01/03/2012 5.76% 842

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB2 01/13/2022 $680,091 $669,106 2.375% 09/08/2014 3.51% 2338

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/2018 $1,147,182 $1,159,484 1.375% 07/06/2010 6.09% 1080

*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 01/15/2020 $1,131,947 $1,164,195 2.125% 07/01/2010 6.11% 1620

*TB US Treasury Bond 912828WE6 11/15/2023 $769,328 $790,459 2.750% 12/13/2013 4.15% 3000

Accrued Interest $113,458

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $19,026,070 $19,054,277 99.99%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $447 $447 0.26% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $966 $966 0.34% Estimated 0.01%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $19,027,483 $19,055,689 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $21,209,477 $21,337,340

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $18,211,332 $18,299,237

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $4,189,512 $4,189,512

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $26,315 $26,315 0.01%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $23,243,310 $23,271,516

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $22,238,029 $22,325,935

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	07-22-15 Agenda
	06-24-15 Min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	June 24, 2015

	bills
	sound study results memo
	Pictures
	LR_CMWD Mitigated Pumping Plants Noise Study (4)
	Casitas Municipal Water District (CMWD) - 4m and Upper Pumping Plants
	Mitigated Noise Monitoring Report
	Acoustical Terminology

	LR_AEA Comments regarding Meridian Noise Study Report
	AEA Comments regarding Meridian Consultants Noise Study Report

	Meridian Report
	Mr. Holly's Comment on Meridian's Test
	Memo - Tax Rate 2015-16
	Resolution for Tax Rate State Water 2015-2016
	CERTIFICATE

	Memo - Incode In-Site Modification of Usage History
	Memo - GASB 68
	Memo re jet toilets
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW
	SUMMARY:

	Conservation Penalty 07 17 2015
	CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	Inter-Office Memorandum
	FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors consider the setting of the conservation penalty.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Reso Conservation Penalty 07 17 2015
	BHFS Waiver of Conflict of Interest signed
	Fin Minutes 07 17 2015
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:   General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Consumption 2014 - 2015 (12)
	CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Costs 2014-2015 (1)
	Investment Report 07-15-15 (1)



